

# WolfEMR

# MedDialog and eFax Guide

v2018.2.20



Revised May 22, 2018, version 2018.2.20

Wolf EMR software and related products and services are owned by TELUS. Wolf EMR and TELUS Health are trademarks of TELUS.

The patients, physicians and circumstances depicted within this manual are fictitious. Any resemblance of any sample data or screenshots to any actual person, whether living or dead, is purely coincidental and unintentional.

# Table of contents

MedDialog	
Enabling providers to send messages via MedDialog	
Finding providers in the TELUS Provider Registry	7
Sending a referral via MedDialog	
Sending external messages via MedDialog	
Receiving and responding to external messages	17
Troubleshooting MedDialog	
Electronic faxing (eFax)	
Sending electronic faxes	
Managing incoming electronic faxes	
Managing sent electronic faxes	
Configuring eFax accounts	

# MedDialog

#### View video tutorial:

MedDialog demonstration between two TELUS Health EMRs (Med Access and PS Suite)

This overview video shows how providers can send messages from one TELUS Health EMR to providers in another EMR.

If the video does not play, Click here to copy the web address and then paste it into a web browser outside the Wolf EMR data centre.

**Note:** In the first phase launch, MedDialog is available to providers using PS Suite EMR, Med Access EMR, and Wolf EMR and is a limited release to a small number of preselected clinics. Once it is more generally available, TELUS Health will send further communications. If you are interested in participating in this pilot, please contact our sales team at 1-844-367-4968 or PracticeConsulting.TelusEMR@telus.com.

MedDialog<sup>™</sup> is a service that enables you to safely and efficiently exchange clinical information with other providers, directly from your EMR and is integrated into your current workflows. MedDialogprovides the ability to send secure provider-to-provider messages in order to safely provide referrals, consultations, or other medical services while protecting the privacy of the patient.

You can send secure messages, referrals, and consults between participating providers when using a participating EMR. See:

- "Sending a referral via MedDialog" on page 10
- "Sending external messages via MedDialog" on page 13
- "Receiving and responding to external messages" on page 17

When your EMR is registered with MedDialog, you can locate other participating providers by searching the integrated TELUS Provider Registry (TPR), which is available when addressing a referral or an external message, and they can be imported into your local consultant address book. See "Finding providers in the TELUS Provider Registry" on page 7.

To use the service, your clinic must first register for the service with TELUS Health and each provider must also individually register for the service. TELUS Health then activates and configures the feature in your EMR. See "Enabling providers to send messages via MedDialog" below.

# Enabling providers to send messages via MedDialog

Before any provider can send messages via MedDialog, your clinic must register for the service with TELUS Health and TELUS Health must enable the functionality in your Wolf EMR. Following clinic activation, each provider must be individually enabled. TELUS Health performs this activation for you at the time when you register for MedDialog and configures your Wolf EMR accordingly. The information below is for reference only.

**Note:** These options are available only for administrators and only if TELUS Health enabled the MedDialog functionality for your clinic.

Once registered for MedDialog, your clinic is assigned an organization ID and each provider is assigned a provider ID. These IDs are also known as clinic provider registry (CPR) IDs.

If your clinic uses multiple locations, each location must be registered and configured for MedDialog using separate organization IDs. However each provider has only a single MedDialog provider ID and is licenced to access MedDialog from some or all locations.

If providers access MedDialog from a Wolf EMR location where they are not licenced for MedDialog, they can view and reply to their messages, however replies must be sent on behalf of a provider who IS licenced for that location and who is a participant of the original message. New messages must be sent on behalf of a provider who is licenced for that location.

**Note:** If the clinic is enabled for MedDialog, in the **Referral Letter Composer**, the ability to edit the referral details (**Referral Detail** in the left pane) is disabled. You must close the letter and return to the new referral to make any changes to the recipient, urgency, reason, and text of the letter.

#### Steps to enable MedDialog for the clinic and locations

- 1. From the Wolf EMR Home tab, click Configuration <sup>10</sup> and from the View menu, choose Shared Health Exchange.
- 2. To add a new clinic (organization) ID, click New 👽

- 3. In the **CPR ID** field, enter your organization's clinic provider registry ID, obtained from TELUS Health.
- 4. Click **Confirm and Save** to connect to the TELUS Provider Registry and confirm the ID.

The services that your clinic is licenced for (MedDialog) and your registered clinic address appears.

°o		Shared Health Exchange - Organizations	_ <b>_ x</b>
Filter New	Delete App	oly to all Assign Location	
View 🦼 Create	🔺 Manage 🔺 M	anage Locations 🔒	
Name	CPR Ids	Edit Organization	
Wolforg3	190000110		Confirm and Save Cancel
Wolforg3e	190000472		
		<ul> <li>◆ CPR Id: 190000110</li> <li>Services:</li></ul>	Confirmed!

- 5. If your clinic uses multiple locations, choose which location(s) can access MedDialog:
  - To enable all locations to access MedDialog, click Apply to all locations <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>
  - To enable only some locations to access MedDialog, click Assign Location, select the location, and from the location's CPR ID field, choose the one that applies to the location.
- 6. To disable MedDialog for the entire clinic, in the **Runtime Configuration** tab, clear the **MedDialog Enabled** check box.

Health Exchange Communi	cations	
PrescribelT Enabled	V MedDialog Enabled	

#### Steps to enable MedDialog for a provider

- 1. From the Wolf EMR Home tab, click Configuration and from the View menu, choose Physicians/Service Providers > Office Service Providers.
- 2. Select the provider.
- 3. On the **Health Exchange Communications** tab, select the **MedDialog Enabled** check box and enter the provider's TPR ID.

🖏 Physicians / Service Provider	s in Clinic
File View Options Reports	
Office Service Provider	Doctor, Svetlana
	·
Name / Address   Other Data	Company / Bank   Locum Work Coverage   Billing   Skills   Security [Health Exchange Communications
✓ PrescribelT Enabled	I MedDialog Enabled
Provider TPR ID:	190000054 Confirm
Registered College ID:	SD77883578
College Province:	British Columbia

- 4. Click the **Confirm** button to connect to the TELUS Provider Registry (TPR) and confirm the ID.
- 5. Once the provider is found in the TPR, the provider's college ID and province are automatically populated.
- 6. To disable MedDialog for the provider, clear the MedDialog Enabled check box.

# Finding providers in the TELUS Provider Registry

The TELUS Provider Registry (TPR) is a national database of health service providers. You can search the TPR for any external providers to whom you can send referrals and external messages. To send a provider a referral or message via MedDialog, that provider must also be registered for MedDialog. You can also send referrals or messages via eFax if the recipient has a fax number.

Once you send a message to a provider from the TPR, that provider's information is automatically imported into your external consultant list within Wolf EMR, to facilitate finding the provider for any future messages. If the external provider from the TPR already exists in your Wolf EMR external consultant list, and if information differs, a match window opens where you can confirm the match and update your local information with the information from the TPR.

You can also perform an advanced search to search using additional filters.

#### Steps

- 1. Start a referral or start a new message or a reply to a message (see "Sending external messages via MedDialog" on page 13).
- 2. If you are creating a new referral, to perform a simple search of your favourites, by specialty, or by name, select the **Include TPR** check box, type at least 3 characters to search all providers in the TPR, and press Enter on your keyboard. MedDialog-enabled recipients appear with an @ sign in the last column.

Tost. Mother       PH/N 99999999       Log       E       Cancel       Delete       Performance         123 Main Street, Hope BC V2V 2V2       Sex F       Status N/A       Pri Veta Coles, M.D.       Image: Consultation       Pri Veta Coles, M.D.       Image: Consultation       Pri Veta Coles, M.D.       Image: Consultation       Image: Consultation       Prive: Consultation       Image: Consultation	New Referral			X
Born 22-Dec-1976 (38 yr)     Sex F     Status N/A       123 Main Street, Hope BC V2V 2V2     Fr (K55) 555-5555     Pn Veta Coles, M.D.       C     C     C       Search for Consultation     Urgency:     Routine       Search for Consultant:     From Favourites     By Specialty     By Name       Add New Consultant:     From Favourites     By Specialty     By Last Name Only     Include TPR       Search:     svetlana     Haematology     123 Test1 Street     Surrey       @ Doctor, Svetlana     Haematology     456 Test2 Avenue     Surrey       Referral MD: <ul> <li>Primary (To):</li> <li>Set Primary</li> </ul>	Test, Mother	PHN 999999999	Log 📴 🕂 Cance Refer	el Delete ral Referral 🃭
Referral Type:       Consultation       Urgency:       Routine       Cancel Appt         Search for Consultant:       From Favourites       By Specialty       By Hame       Add New Consultant       Info         Search:       svettana       Prov:       BC       By Last Name Only       Include TPR       Advanced Search         @ Doctor, Svettana       Haematology       123 Test1 Street       Surrey       Manage         @ Doctor, Svettana       Haematology       456 Test2 Avenue       Surrey       Manage         Referral MD:	Born         22-Dec-1978 (38 yr)         Sex F         Status N/A           123 Main Street,         H         (555) 555           Hope BC V2V 2V2         C         W	-5555 Pri Veta Coles, M.D.		
Search for Consultant:     From Favourites     By Specialty     By Name     Add New Consultant     Info       Search:     svetlana     Prov:     BC     By Last Name Only     Include TPR     Advanced Search       Ø Doctor, Svetlana     Haematology     123 Test1 Street     Surrey     Manage       Ø Doctor, Svetlana     Haematology     456 Test2 Avenue     Surrey     Manage       Referral MD:           Set Primary (To):	Referral Type: Consultation Urgency:	Routine	Cancel Appt	
Search:     svettana     Prov:     BC     □     By Last Name Only     ✓ Include TPR     Advanced Search       Ø Doctor, Svettana     Haematology     123 Test1 Street     Surrey       Ø Doctor, Svettana     Haematology     456 Test2 Avenue     Surrey       Referral MD:	Search for Consultant: From Favourites	By Specialty By Name	e Add New Consu	litant Info
Image: Construction of the co	Search: svetlana	Prov: BC 💌 🗌 By Last Name	Only 🔽 Include TPR 🔝 Ad	vanced Search
@ Doctor, Svetlana     Haematology     456 Test2 Avenue     Surrey     Manage Favourites       #     #     #     #	@ Doctor, Svetlana Haematology	123 Test1 Street	Surrey	
Referral MD: Primary (To): Set Primary	@ Doctor, Svetlana Haematology	456 Test2 Avenue	Surrey	Manage Favourites
Referral MD: Set Primary (To): Set Primary				+ 3
Referral MD: Primary (To): Set Primary				
	Referral MD:	Primary (To):		Set Primary
□ Visited for same issue before Cc Recipients: Add		Cc Recipients:		Add
Remove	□ Visited for same issue before			

Select the primary provider and any additional CC recipients.

- 3. To perform an advanced search:
  - a) If you are creating new referral, click **Advanced Search**. The **Provider Address Book** opens with the option to **Include TELUS Provider Registry** and your province selected by default.
  - b) If you are creating a new message, click To or CC. The **Provider Address Book** opens with the option to **Include TELUS Provider Registry** and your province selected by default.
  - c) In the **Search** field, type at least 3 characters and press Enter.

**Tip:** To search by first name, last name, city, or specialty, click **Show Filters** and type at least 3 characters in one of the fields.

- Indicates providers who are available to contact through MedDialog
- imi indicates consultants who have a fax number
- Indicates consultants who are in the TELUS Provider Registry
- Indicates consultants who are in your favourite list (the clinic's or your personal favourites)

**Tip:** To add the consultant as a favourite, click the blank star  $\propto$  in the **User** (to add to your personal favourites) or **Clinic** column. Click the yellow star  $\star$  to remove as a favourite.

2	<b>.</b>	5		Provider	Address Book			_ □
earch Ad	ld To: Add (	Cc:						
Search				Province	BC	▼ By la	st name only	Hide filters 쉮
	🗹 Include	TELUS Provider Regi	istry	Please note: must contair	TELUS Provider F no less than 3 ch	Registry search (sea haracters.	arch field, last name, first n	ame, and city)
	ast Name:	test			City:			
F	First Name:				Specialty:			•
onsultant	s Favourite	es	PT- 1 Al-	5	· h			<b>c</b> 1
ourite	Indicator	Last Name	First Name	Spec	ialty	Llinic Name	Address	Kelowoa
	•ব	Testho	Meddialog Bc	Physi	rian, General	Test Br	123 Testbc3 St	Kelowna
	-	Patch test Clinic	inicidatiog be	Allero	v & Clinical L	1636.00	314-888 West 8th	Vancouver
To		**						
	** The	e max number of Cc r	recipients is 10 **				OK	Cancel

- d) Select the primary recipient and click the **To** button.
- e) Optionally, select up to 10 recipients recipient to add as a CC.
- 4. If you choose a provider from the TPR who already exists in your Wolf EMR external consultant list, you are prompted to updated your local information. Red bold text indicates differences.

				Update Provider			_ 0
STEP 1: One or m	ore MATCHING or	oviders were	found locally. Plea	se choose one from the list	for u	odate.	
Provider Name	Favourite	Indicator	5pecialty	Clinic / Organization	101 0	Address	City
Doctor, Svetlana		o		Wolforg3		123 Test1 Street	Surrey
STEP 2: Please se	lect to update for	the selected Doctor, Svet	local provider. Iana (Local)			Doctor, Svetlana (TPR)	
	0	Select All			0	Select All	
:le	0	None			0	None	
rst Name	0	5vetlana			0	Svetlana	
ist Name	0	Doctor			0	Doctor	
pecialty	0,	None			٢	Physician, Haematology	
inic/Organization	0	Wolforg3			0	Wolforg4	
ddress	۹	123 Test1 St	reet		0	456 Test2 Avenue	
ty	0	5urrey			0	Surrey	
eneral Office Phone	0	(778) 835-7840			0	(778) 835-7840	
ivate Office Phone	0	(778) 835-7840			0	(778) 835-7840	
Hate office mone	0	None			0	None	
ager					0	None	
ager ell	<ul> <li>Image: A start of the start of</li></ul>	None			0		
ager ell		<del>None</del> (905) 921-43	21		0	(519) 591-9471	

Choose one of the following:

- To update your local information with the information from the TPR and send the message to this updated provider, select the fields that you want to import into your local consultant list and click **Update Local Provider**.
- To not update your local information and use the local provider as the recipient, click **Use** Local Provider.
- To add the provider from the TPR as a new provider in your local consultant list and use the new provider as the recipient, click **Add New Provider**.
- 5. Proceed with sending the referral ("Sending a referral via MedDialog" below) or message ("Sending external messages via MedDialog" on page 13).

# Sending a referral via MedDialog

If you choose a MedDialog-enabled recipient from the TELUS Provider Registry (TPR), you can send your referral electronically via the MedDialog service. If the referral is also addressed to recipients who are NOT enabled for MedDialog, you can send it to them manually via fax or mail. You can include only one **To** (primary) recipient and up to 10 **CC** recipients.

To send referrals via MedDialog, you must use the **Referral Letter Composer** to create your referral letter.

Wolf EMR creates a PDF with the contents of the letter composer (and any attachments) and attaches it to the sent message. After the referral message is sent, you can review this PDF referral letter in the **Documents** tab of the patient's medical summary. The letter is linked to the sent referral, which appears in the **Referrals** tab of the patient's medical summary.

If you have multiple locations of Wolf EMR implemented, you can only send referrals via MedDialog from locations where you are licenced for MedDialog.

#### Steps

- 1. Start a referral as normal.
- 2. When searching for and selecting a consultant in the **New Referral** window, choose a consultant who is MedDialog-enabled.
  - To perform a simple search of your favourites, by specialty, or by name, select the Include TPR check box to search all providers in the TPR. MedDialog-enabled recipients appear with an @ sign in the first column.

📧 New Referral									Σ
Test, Mother	Cure Chattan N20	PF	i'N 999999999	Log	69	<b>+</b> !	Cancel Referral	Delete Referral	₽
123 Main Street, Hope BC V2V 2V2	H (555) 555-5: C W	555 <i>Pri</i> Veta	Coles, M.D.						
Referral Type: Consultation	Urgency:	Routine	V	🗌 Car	ncel Ap	opt			
Search for Consultant: From	Favourites	By Specialty	By Nam	e	A	id Nev	v Consulta	nt Info .	
Search: svetlana		Prov: BC	By Last Name	Only 🔽	Include	e TPR	🛄 Advar	iced Search	<u>۱</u>
@ Doctor, Svetlana	Haematology	123 Test1 S	treet		Sur	rey		1	
@ Doctor, Svetlana	Haematology	456 Test2 A	venue		Sur	rey		Manage	
								Favourit	4
								13	1
Referral MD:		💌 Primary (To):						Set Prim	агу
Visited for same issue before		Cc Recipients:						Add	
								Remove	e

To perform an advanced search using additional search filters, click Advanced Search.
 MedDialog-enabled recipients appear envelope with a plus sign icon in the second column

				Provider /	Address Book			
arch Ad	ld To: Add	Co:						
Ac	tions	4						
Search				Province	BC	▼ By la	st name only	Hide filters
	🖌 Include	TELUS Provider Regist	ry	Please note: must contain	TELUS Provider F no less than 3 ch	Registry search (sea haracters.	rch field, last name, first n	ame, and city)
l	.ast Name:	test			City:			
F	irst Name:				Specialty:			•
onsultants	s Favourit	es						
vourite	Indicator	Last Name	First Name	Speci	alty	Clinic Name	Address	City
	o⊴	Test	Bc Three	Physic	ian, General	Test Bc	123 Testbc3 St	Kelowna
	o-<	Testbc	Meddialog Bc	Physic	ian, General	Test Bc	123 Testbc3 St	Kelowna
		Patch test Clinic		Allergy	y & Clinical I		314-888 West 8th	Vancouver
Record	d1of3 ► 1	Patch test Clinic		Allerg	y & Clinical I		314-888 West 8th	Vancouver
Recor	d1of3 ▶	Patch test Clinic		Allerg	y & Clinical I		314-888 West 8th	Vancouver
<ul> <li>Recor</li> <li>To</li> </ul>	d1of3 ►	Patch test Clinic		Allerg	y & Clinical I		314-888 West 8th	Vancouver
<ul> <li>Recor</li> <li>To</li> <li>Cc</li> </ul>	d1of3 ► 1	Patch test Clinic		Allerg	y & Clinical I		314-888 West 8th	Vancouver
4 Recor To Cc	d1 of 3 ト )	Patch test Clinic	cipients is 10 **	Allerg	y & Clinical I		314-888 West 8th	Vancouver

For more information about searching for and selecting providers, see "Finding providers in the TELUS Provider Registry" on page 7.

- 3. Fill out the referral details.
- 4. Click **Compose** . The **Referral Letter Composer** window opens.
- 5. Choose the information to include in the referral letter.

\*

**Note:** The information you typed as the referral reason will be included in the message subject (such as Referral: Patient Name - Referral reason). You cannot edit the subject text.

To attach a document or file that is in the patient's medical chart to the message, click
 Attachment

You can add up to 20 attachments with a maximum combined size of 50 MB. The following attachment types are supported: .pdf, .jpg, .png, .txt, .tiff, .mp3, .mp4, .wav, .wma, .mov, .wmv, and .avi. You can also attach a Microsoft Word document; the EMR automatically converts it to a PDF in the message attachment.

You can only include attachments when your message is related to a patient. You can only include attachments that are within the patient's chart.

7. When you are done, click **Send**.



8. When prompted, choose to Send.

If you are also sending the referral to other recipients who are not enabled for MedDialog, their sending method is set to manual and you must manually send the referral by fax or print.

Message sent from Macon, Terrance
To: 📓 Atest, Valid
Cc: 💽 Doctor, Svetlana
To be sent manually
Doctor, Test - Wolf Sample Clinic
Send Cancel
Legal Disclaimer
You understand that the MedDialog Service is to be connected to other third parties' clinical messaging solutions over time. You understand and expressly agree that your credentials (including your name, clinic name, type of clinic, phone/fax number, address, email address) will be made available to other providers through their clinical messaging solution's connection to the MedDialog Service. These providers are marked within the EMR address book indicating the other vendor end point.

9. A banner appears at the top of the **Referral Letter Composer** to confirm that the messages was delivered.

If the message fails to send, a **Send failed** window opens with the option to re-send, edit the referral, or set it to send manually (via fax or print). You can also save the referral and try to send it later. See "Troubleshooting MedDialog" on page 22.

🖳 Referral Lette	er Composer				_ <b>_ x</b>
) Print	Send to SMART Form	ب History	Ø Attachment	F Exit	
Status — Delivered	14-Sep-2017 To: Dr. Svetla	1:28 PM: Referral ana Doctor - MedD	Delivered to electro ialog	nic recipients	
Author	Akin				

The referral is sent to the provider(s) and will await them in their EMR inbox.

10. To see a summary of the message transmission, click History.

## Sending external messages via MedDialog

You can send (or reply to) an electronic message to an external provider using the MedDialog service.

You access your external messages inbox from your WorkDesk. External messages are sent and received in a separate inbox than your regular Wolf EMR internal messages.

You can send a message related to a patient or not related to a patient. Front-end staff can send external messages on behalf of their provider(s) who are enabled for MedDialog.

If you are font-end staff or a provider covering for another provider who is MedDialog-enabled, you can send messages on behalf of that provider.

You can send messages to any contact that is in your external provider address book. If you send a message to a contact who is a MedDialog-enabled provider, they will receive the message electronically. If you send a message to a recipient who has a fax number, they will receive the message via fax (sent via the eFax service). Messages sent by fax include a cover page that summarizes the message urgency, subject, recipient, and sender; the current message contents; and a list of file names that are attached.

If you send a message to a contact who is neither MedDialog-enabled nor has a fax number, you will be prompted to send the message manually (print and then send by fax or mail).

#### Steps

 From your WorkDesk, click the red link # Active External Messages, where # = the number of external messages that were not yet completed or archived (or the grey link No Active External Messages if you do not have any active messages).

The External Messages inbox opens.

2. To create a new message, click **Message** . A new blank message opens.

Inform     Prom     Prom     Received     Image: Prom     Image	_ • ×	E				2
Received					New Message	Inbox
Active demonstration <ul> <li>Sourch</li> <li>Prom</li> </ul> <ul> <li>In the behalf of</li> <li>Concentration</li> <li>Sourch</li> <li>Prom</li> <li>Received</li> <li>Received</li> <li>Attractments</li> <li>Interview</li> <li>Interview</li></ul>				t Urgent	Attachments Chart	Discard
From Received Received Received Attachments			Show Filters	· ·	xternal Messages	Active Ext
		Re: Patient Attachments	Received		ron	Fro

3. If you are front-end staff sending a message on behalf of a provider or a provider covering for another, select the **On behalf of** check box and choose the provider. Replies will go to the chosen provider's external messages inbox.

**Note:** If providers access MedDialog from a Wolf EMR location where they are not licenced for MedDialog, they can view and reply to their messages, however replies must be sent on behalf of a provider who IS licenced for that location and who is a participant of the original message. New messages must be sent on behalf of a provider who is licenced for that location.

- 4. Choose a recipient:
  - a) Click the To: button
  - b) In the **Provider Address Book**, search for and select a recipient. You can include only one **To** recipient and up to 10 **CC** recipients. For more information about searching and selecting providers, see "Finding providers in the TELUS Provider Registry" on page 7.
    - If you choose a MedDialog-enabled recipient, they will receive the message electronically
    - If you choose a recipient that has a fax, the message will be faxed via eFax
    - If you choose a recipient that has neither, you will be prompted to manually send the message (print the message and send if by fax or mail)

				Provider	Address Book			
th Add	To: Add C	<b>)</b> Ic:						
Acti	ions	4						
iearch				Province	BC	▼ By la	st name only	Hide filters
	🗹 Include	TELUS Provider Regi	stry	Please note: must contair	TELUS Provider F no less than 3 ch	Registry search (sea haracters.	arch field, last name, first n	ame, and city)
La	ast Name:	test			City:			
Fi	rst Name:				Specialty:			•
sultants	Favourite	:5						
urite	Indicator	Last Name	First Name	Spec	ialty:	Clinic Name	Address	City
(	M	Test	Bc Three	Physi	ician, General	Test Bc	123 Testbc3 St	Kelowna
<	×.	Testbc	Meddialog Bc	Physi	cian, General	Test Bc	123 Testbc3 St	Kelowna
		Patch test Clinic		Allerg	y & Clinical I		314-888 West 8th	Vancouver
Record	1of3 ▶▶	N ⊲						
To								
Cc								
	** The	max number of Cc r	ecipients is 10 **				ОК	Cancel
	** The	max number of (	Ic r	Cc recipients is 10 **	Cc recipients is 10 **	Ec recipients is 10 **	Cc recipients is 10 **	Cc recipients is 10 ** OK

5. Type a subject for the message.

6. To send a message related to a patient, click the **Patient** button. Search for and double-click the patient. The patient's summary appears in the message.



- 7. To attach the patient's chart (or only portions of the chart) to the message, click **Chart** and choose the items to include. The items are included within a PDF file attached to the message.
- 8. To attach a document or file that is in the **Documents** tab of the patient's medical chart to the message:

a)	Click Attachment 🥢	. The Attachments	window opens.
----	--------------------	-------------------	---------------

orm	Attach	ment	E Save	× Cancel	Save & Exit				
		]				Author —			
1	Attachme	nts							
Dr	ag a column l	header here to gro	up by that colum	ID					
	Attached	File Name	Date	Status	Keyword One	Keyword Two	Keyword Three	Notes	Ph
×		scrambled.txt	11/14/2012	Reviewed	scrambled	scrambled			Ve
		scrambled.txt	11/7/2012	Reviewed	scrambled	scrambled	scrambled		Ve
		scrambled.txt	9/19/2012	Staff Revie	scrambled				
		scrambled.txt	4/23/2012	Reviewed	scrambled				Ve
		scrambled.txt	2/24/2012	Reviewed	scrambled	scrambled			Ve

b) Choose the attachment and click **OK**.



You can add up to 20 attachments with a maximum combined size of 50 MB. The following attachment types are supported: .pdf, .jpg, .png, .txt, .tiff, .mp3, .mp4, .wav, .wma, .mov, .wmv, and .avi.

You can only include attachments when your message is related to a patient. You can only include attachments that are within the patient's chart.

- 9. To mark the message as urgent, click **Urgent**. Urgent messages appear in red and with an exclamation mark in the recipient's inbox.
- 10. Type the body text of your message and click Send

A summary of the recipients and the sending method opens.

Message sent from Macon, Terrance	2					
To: 🔓 Atest, Valid						
Cc: 💽 Doctor, Svetlana						
To be sent manually						
Doctor, Test - Wolf Sa	mple Clinic					
Send	Cancel					
Legal Disclai	mer					
You understand that the MedDialog Serv other third parties' clinical messaging sol understand and expressly agree that you name, clinic name, type of clinic, phone/ address) will be made available to other messaging solution's connection to the N providers are marked within the EMR ad other vendor end point.	vice is to be connected to utions over time. You our credentials (including your fax number, address, email providers through their clinical fedDialog Service. These dress book indicating the					

- 11. When prompted, choose to **Send**.
- 12. If you are also sending the message to recipients who are not enabled for MedDialog or do not

have a fax number, you must manually send the message (print and/or fax it). Click **Print** to send it to them via fax or mail.

When the message is successfully sent, it appears in your sent messages list. Hover your mouse over the message to see its status (pending, success, or failed).

### Receiving and responding to external messages

MedDialog polls for new external messages every 5 minutes. You access your external messages inbox from your WorkDesk. External messages are sent and received in a separate inbox than your regular Wolf EMR internal messages.

Javier R. Akin				Tuesd	lay - September 19, 2017 10:09 am
17 Investigations	17 Documents	🕕 No Rule M	atches 3 Current Messages	🧘 1 Follow-up	Carl 2 Patients Booked
Messages Appointment	ts		Tasks Patient		
Current Messages:	Sign Out	• <u>+</u>	Medical Summary	Ouiok Entru	Domorronhios
Date	Patient/*To	From		GOLCK LITE Y	Demographics
09-Oct-2012 16:56	Rios, Mavis	Nunez, Caleb	Investigation Results		
24-Jan-2013 11:49	Jones, Lisa	Norris Joe, M.D.	17 New Electronic Investigation Results		
24-341-2013 11:30	JUNES, LISA	NOTTS JUE, NLD.	17 New Documents		
			No New Manual Results to be Reviewed		
			No Rule Matches (level 5) found in last 7 da	ays. Total rule matches = 0	
			Referrals		
			No Letters Due Within The Next Week (N	lo Letters - Total)	
			No Letters to Edit		
			No Incoming Consults	No Declined	eReferrals
			Patient Records		
			5 Incomplete Visit Records		
2 Active External Message	s				
Current Follow Up Tasks:	Sign Out	Ŧ			
Date Patie	ent/*To Fro	m			
13 Jun 2013 Ayal	a, Nina Mac	lean, Monte			

You can receive incoming referrals (if you are a consultant/specialist), incoming consults, and general messages that are related or not to a patient. When a message is related to a patient, the EMR tries to match the patient to an existing one in your EMR or creates a new patient if they do not already exist. All patient data in the message, including attachments, is added to the patient's chart.

Each provider has access to their own incoming external messages. Front-end staff have access to external messages for all service providers they are supporting (WorkDesk > **Filter Options**).

**Tip:** You can view a specific patient's sent, received, and completed external messages in the **Communication** tab of the patient's medical summary. Double-click a message to open it in your external messages inbox.

Tip: In the external messages inbox, click Address Book to browse through a view-only version of the external consultant list and TELUS Provider Registry (TPR).

#### Steps

 From your WorkDesk, click the red link # Active External Messages, where # = the number of external messages that were not yet completed or archived (or the grey link No Active External Messages if you do not have any active messages).

The External Messages inbox opens.

<u>2</u>	External Messages		- 0 X
Inbox Message Reply Complete Print New Resp., Actions Find			
Active External Messages         •         Show Fitters         •           Search         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         0         10:14 AM         0:14 AM         10:14 AM         40         404(2)         9:41 AM         0         0         9:41 AM         0         0         9:41 AM         0<	Javier R. Akin TaiEads - test IDAt To: #strico.Demanne Cc:	Tue, Se	ptember 19, 2017 10:14AM
Referral: Joel T. Baca - Referral to Sweda Ananthanarayanan  Javier R. Akin 9:38 AM Tai Eads. Task with attacknesst	Eads, Tai	Born 06-Aug-1918( Sex F Arrived' 69 mins	PHV 9996335551 Status
	Somey sc. How 101 LA Call Moder (725) 782-2679 Attachments audiochessi.uway Ist	With Dr.	
Item: 3 Unread: 0 Referrals: 1 Consult: 0			

Unread messages appear in bold.

Urgent messages appear in red with an ! icon.

At the bottom of the message list, a summary indicates the total number of messages and the number of messages that are unread, referrals, and consults. Referrals and consult include **Referral:** or **Consult:** and the name of the patient within the message subject.

- 2. By default, your **Active External Messages** appear with the oldest message at the top. If needed, filter the list using the following options:
  - Use the list in the top left corner to only see your **Archived** or **Sent** messages.



- To search for a specific message or patient, in the **Search** field type your text and press Enter.
- To change the sort order of messages, click a column header.
- To filter the messages by urgency, message date, whether it is regarding a patient, and recipient (Received) or sender (From), click Show Filters.

Consultants shows messages from external consultants

Practitioner shows people within your Wolf EMR clinic.

Ninpox 1						
Message	Reply	Archive	Print	Address Book		
New 🦼	Resp 🖌	Action	15 🔺	Find 🔒		
Active Ext	ernal Messag	essage date		Hide	e Filters	Ŷ
All	▼ Fr ding Patients	om	•	То		•
From Consultar	nt 🔻					•
To Consultar	nt 🔻					•
Apply	Filters	Re	set Filters			

- 3. Click a message to open it.
- 4. If the message is related to a patient, the EMR adds the patient to your EMR or attempts to match the patient to one that already exists in your EMR (based on the patient's health number).

If the EMR cannot perform a match (for example, the PHN matches multiple patient charts), click **Confirm Patient** to perform the match. Red bold text indicates differences.

Patient Name  v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v	found locally. Plea	ase cho MD	iose one fro	im the list	view			
Patient Name  Patient Name  wmsdoaqkjrl, Svetlana T.  Mmsdoaqkjrl, Svetlana T.	Date of Birth     22-Jun-2017	MD						
vmsdoagkjrl, Svetlana T.     Wmsdoagkjrl, Svetlana T.	22-Jun-2017	1.12		Sev	Home Phone	City	Statuc	Last Verified
wmsdoaqkirl, Svetlana T. Wmsdoaqkirl, Svetlana T.	22-Jun-2017			2004	TIONE THORE	Ch)	Status	Case voluted
Wmsdoaqkjrl, Svetlana T.	22-Jun-2017	-						
Wmsdoaqkjrl, Svetlana T.				F	4			29/06/2017
	25-Jun-2017	FA		F	(445) 123-4567			29/06/2017
	Wmsdoaqkjrl, S	vetlan	a T. (Local)					
Provincial Health Number	99999999999							
Alternate IDs	N/A							
Title	None							
First Name	Svetlana							
Middle Name	Thumbelina							
Chosen Name	None							
Last Name	Wmsdoaqkjrl							
Gender	F							
Birth Date	25-Jun-2017							
Date of Death	None							
	Forest Drive 123							
Address	AB CA							

Select a patient in the list and choose one of the following:

- To add the patient to your EMR using the information from the message and link the message to this new patient, click **Add New Patient**.
- To link the message to an existing patient in your EMR, click Use Local Patient.

Once a patient is confirmed, the patient's information appears in the message header

5. If the message includes attachments, they are automatically linked to the patient's chart (**Documents** tab in the medical summary) when a patient is confirmed. Double-click the attachment to view it.

Referrals are filed with the document type **Referral**. Consults are filed with the document type **Consult**.



**Important:** Incoming consult documents are not automatically linked to the referral. If receive an incoming consult letter via MedDialog, you must manually link the document from the patient's medical summary to the original referral.

6. To reply to the sender, click **Reply** . Once you send a reply, the recipient(s) are automatically added to your Wolf EMR consultant list for any future messages or replies. The original message thread remains in the reply



**Note:** The message subject for replies to an incoming referral are automatically set to Consult: Patient Name - Referral reason.

For more information about populating a message reply, see "Sending external messages via MedDialog" on page 13.

If have multiple locations of Wolf EMR implemented, the reply is sent using the provider's location specified in the original message.

7. To complete or archive the message, click **Archive** . The message is moved to the archived message list and no longer appears in the active message list.

# Troubleshooting MedDialog

#### How can I tell if my referral or message was sent successfully via MedDialog?

If the initial message fails, the EMR tries to send the message a total of three times. Your message may initially show it was sent successfully but then, shortly after, get updated to indicate that it could not be delivered. This means the message left your system but was rejected after that point. When messages are sent, they first go to a central switch called MedDialog. This central switch does basic validation and virus checking on the message before sending it on to the recipient. Your message could be rejected at the switch, or it could be successfully delivered to the switch but not the recipient.

With the **Referral Letter Composer**, the status of the messages appears at the top of the window.

🖳 Referral Lette	r Composer				_ <b>D</b> X		
) Print	Send to SMART Form	ب History	// Attachment	R Exit			
Status —							
Delivered	Delivered 14-Sep-2017 1:28 PM: Referral Delivered to electronic recipients To: Dr. Svetlana Doctor - MedDialog						
Author					1		
.lavier Ranhael	Akin						

Click **History** 4 to see the transmission history of the message.

ſ	🖳 History Viewer				- • •
	File				
	E xit			Status Last Updated: 09/06,	/2017 11:37 AM
	20/06/2017 Document 0 09/06/2017 Document P 09/06/2017 Document 9	Delivered Pending Sent	2017-06-20 09:20:17 2017-06-09 10:30: 2017-06-09 09:58:	Document Delivered to recipients 23 Document Pending delivery to recipients 30 Document send to recipients	<u>^</u>

In the external message inbox (from your WorkDesk), sent messages appear in the sent list. Hover your mouse over a message to see the message details, including the transmission status.

2 Inbox				External Messages
Message R New Res	Reply Complete	Print Address Book Find 4		
Sent Messages	5 •	Show Filters	<b>پ</b>	Castleberry, Moses, MD FRCPC
То		Sent		To: La Pred VALTO
<b>∞⊋</b> E 5:01	Bmed, VALID 11 A, 4-eFax VAL	5:01 PM	î	Cc:
o <u>⊊</u> /	ATEST , V 🥁 Sent	Message: Successful		
94.55 074	Yee. Soo To: Bn	ned, VALID - 833 861 9193	1	
4:58	8 A, 4-3 4 From: Ca	stleberry, Moses, MD FRCPC -	Wolforg4	Attachments
्यू । wed	Yee, Soo- Subject: 5: dq	D1 A, 4-eFax VAL		5:01 A, 4-eFax VAL
67	Vee Sociean	4.55 DM		

- A green check mark indicates that the message was sent successful
- A blue clock indicates that the message is pending being sent
- If your message cannot be delivered to the recipient, you receive an automated message in your inbox informing you of the failure. You can then re-send the message.

#### What do I do if my referral or message was not sent successfully?

If a referral or message fails to send, after you click **Send**, you will see a **Send Failed** window. From this window, you can choose to re-send the message vie eFax.

MedDialog	Failure					
A	The Message cannot be delivered via MedDialog to the following Recipient(s):					
	Dr. Svetlana Doctor					
	Select an option to proceed:					
0						
	Send by eFax Close					
	Show Error Message					

To manually send the message, open the message within the **Documents** tab of the patient's medical summary, and choose to print or fax it to the recipient.

#### Where can I see referrals and messages sent via MedDialog?

You can see all sent messages and referrals from within your external messages inbox. See "Receiving and responding to external messages" on page 17.

Sent, received, and completed external messages related to a patient appear in the **Communication** tab of the patient's medical summary. Double-click a message to open it in your external messages inbox.

Message attachments and the referral letter appear in the **Documents** tab of the patient's medical summary.

Sent referrals appear in the **Referrals** tab of the patient's medical summary.

For audit purposed, you can also view all messaging activities within the patient's Change Log.

# Electronic faxing (eFax)

Wolf EMR provides an integrated faxing solution that enables you to send faxes directly from a patient's medical record to its intended destination. For example, you can fax referral letters directly to consultants or send a patient's medical summary to a care facility. You can then view the status of the transmission (success, failure) in the **eFax Queue**.

Electronic (or internet) faxing is provided through the TELUS Health Integrated eFax service. A telephone line is not required, as all faxes are sent using the internet.

You can also receive faxes electronically, when you are subscribed to the TELUS Health Integrated eFax service. Faxes are downloaded to an incoming faxes folder on the Wolf EMR remote desktop, where you can import them into patient records as you do with other documents. See "Managing incoming electronic faxes" on page 29.

To subscribe to this service, please contact our sales team at 1-844-367-4968 or PracticeConsulting.TelusEMR@telus.com.

A log of all outgoing and incoming faxes is stored in the system audit log.

### Sending electronic faxes

If your clinic is set up for internet faxing (eFax) (see "Configuring eFax accounts" on page 30), you can send faxes right from patient charts. You can send any document or content that you would print, such as referral or consult letters, forms, and the medical summary. To send by fax, choose the print the document and instead of choosing a printer, you simply choose the **eFax-TELUS** print driver from the list of printers. Then, select the recipient from the address book or type the fax number.

You have the option of include a fax cover page.

Front-end staff member can send fax on behalf of provider or without provider.

When sending a fax, Wolf EMR creates a single PDF file of all the contents you selected.

#### Steps

1. From the content you want to print (medical summary, document, referral letter, consult letter, and so on) choose one of the folloring:

2. In the list of available printers choose **nnn-eFax-TELUS** (where nnn is your clinic code) and click **Print**.

🖶 Print	<b>—</b>
General	
Select Printer	
Comarth x64 on wp40987 (redirected 7)	Lexmark Univ
Env (redirected 7)	Microsoft XP:
< III	۴
Status: Ready Location: Comment:	Print to file <b>Preferences</b>
Page Range	Number of copies: 1
	1   2   3       Print   Cancel

**Tip:** If you chose to print a patient's chart from the medical summary, click the fax chart button in the upper right corner.

The Send by Fax window opens with a preview of the fax on the right.

📷 Send by eFax	- <b>- - -</b>
From:         Akin, Javier R.           * Fax #:         Test Fax Account 2 (855) 852-8351           To:         Image: Compare the second	Jusier P. Alin Weil Chie (37) Becous Franz Accord Report 90 - 90 B. State-Man.
Include Cover Page  Subject: Comment:	Dr. Analams 115-39 Stearn H. Br. Veccourse, BC VerBEQ Dr. Bath Alrahums D Jan 2008 Dest Dr. Alrahums, Re: Bounis D Ma H. 453(45754 C: W: (777) 2.6-5900 E. Bounis D Ma H. 453(45754 C: W: (777) 2.6-5900 E. Bounis D Machinetta Stranger H. 453(45754 C: W: (777) 2.6-5900 E. Bounis D Machinetta Stranger H. 453(45754 C: W: (777) 2.6-5900 E. Bounis D Machinetta Stranger H. Handle Stranger H. Ha
	Oursent Freddense : No action problems noted Medicetines : No activitizer toted allergine : No Angels: Noted Remarks : No activitizer toted Remarks : No Activitizer toted Sameling : Not Reman Sameling : Not Reman Thank you fire seeing this patient in convulntion. I book forward to your assessment. Sincereby.
Send Cancel	Janiar R. Akin

- 3. To send the fax on behalf of another provider, select the **From** name and select the appropriate fax account to use.
- 4. In the **To** field, perform one of the following:
  - Type the recipient's name and fax number.
  - Click search for and select a recipient from the address book of external consultants and buildings (such as hospital, pharmacy, care facility).

**Note:** You can select only a recipient who has a fax number (indicated by the fax icon ). You can select only one fax recipient.

#### Tip:

By default, the **Favourites** consultant tab opens.

To search for and select from all consultants, click the **Consultants** tab.

To search for and select a building (hospital, pharmacy, care facility, and so on), click **Buildings**.

To restrict your search term to only the recipient's last name, select the **By last name only** check box.

•				Address Book				
Consultants Viev Search	Buildings Action	ch Add To: Ad	dd Cc:	ire BC	- Boliz	act name only	More	L
	Constitute							•
Favourites		First Name	Enecialty	Clinic Name	Adress	City	llear	Clini
		Strecc Tect		chine Name	201 520 17th St	West Vapcouver	USCI	Cini
	LCH	Pulmonary Euroc	CHILDIOLOGI	PET	Lions Gate Hosp	North Vancouver		
	Nanaimo Hospital	Pulmonary Funct			1200 Dufferin C	Nanaimo		
	Patch test Clinic		Allergy & Clinical		314-888 West 8	Vancouver		
1	Patch test Clinic		Allergy & Clinical		314-388 West 8	Vancouver		

5. If you select to **Include Cover Page**, optionally type a subject and comment.

#### 6. Click Send.

Once your fax is sent, you can view its status in the **eFax Queue** (see "Managing sent electronic faxes" on the next page).

# Managing incoming electronic faxes

If your clinic receives faxes electronically, you should first view and, optionally, edit the faxed documents before you import them into the EMR. For example, faxes may be irrelevant to patients, have upside-down pages, contain cover-pages, or have information relating to more than one patient. Using a PDF editing application (such as Adobe Acrobat), you can edit documents before they are linked to patients.

The location of the incoming faxes folder is unique to your clinic. TELUS Health will show you the location of your faxes folder upon your implementation of Wolf EMR. Typically, this is the same folder where you send documents that you scan.

The incoming electronic faxes folder typically resides on one computer in the clinic, while other computers contain mapped drives to the faxes folder. If this is the case, to open the electronic faxes folder, on your desktop, click the incoming electronic faxes link (**S:\Scans\Faxes**).

If you are subscribed to the internet faxing through the TELUS Integrated eFax service, the incoming fax folder is configured in your fax accounts settings (see "Configuring eFax accounts" on the next page).

#### Best practice:

- Review and edit all incoming electronic faxes before importing them into the EMR and linking them to patient charts.
- Delete irrelevant electronic faxes.
- Print electronic faxes that are not related to a patient.

### Managing sent electronic faxes

When you send a fax electronically from Wolf EMR, the status is captured in the **eFax Queue**. You can view faxes pending to be sent, faxes that failed (such as, if the fax number on the receiving end was busy or it was sent to the wrong number), and faxes sent successfully.

If a fax failed, the reason appears and you can re-send it.

A log of all sent faxes is also stored in the system audit log.

You can archive faxes to remove them from the queue. After 30 days, sent faxes are automatically archived. Once archived, you can no longer view, re-send, or perform other actions on the sent fax.

#### Steps

1. From the Wolf EMR home page, click **eFax Queue** . The **eFax Queue** window opens.

1					eFax Queue	(	_ <b>–  </b>
View Resend Archive Fax Actions							
	Status	To #	From	Pages	Sent	Reason	
10	Pending	(604) 630-7094	TestClinicWestBuilding (604) 630-7094		27/12/2017 09:55 AM		
1	Pending	(604) 630-7094	TestClinicWestBuilding (604) 630-7094		27/12/2017 12:07 AM		
10	Pending	(604) 630-7094	TestClinicWestBuilding (604) 630-7094		26/12/2017 11:52 PM		
	Failed	(604) 630-7094	TestClinicWestBuilding (604) 630-7094		26/12/2017 11:38 PM	No remote fax device	
1	Sent	(604) 434-0154	TestClinicWestBuilding (604) 630-7094	100	26/12/2017 10:34 PM		

Õ

**Tip:** The most recent fax appears at the top by default. Click a column header to change the sort order.

2. To view the contents of the fax, select it and click **View** 



Note: If included, the cover page is not shown when you view the sent fax.

- 3. To resend a failed fax, select it and click **Resend**. After you re-send a fax, the original failed one is archived.
- 4. To archive a fax, select it and click Archive

## Configuring eFax accounts

Before you configure Wolf EMR to use internet faxing, you must subscribe to and obtain an internet faxing account from a supported provider. To subscribe to this service, please contact the TELUS Health customer solutions team.

Only Wolf EMR users with the administrator authority can add and configure fax accounts. Nonadministrators can only view the fax account.

You can add multiple fax accounts. For example, each provider may want to subscribe to their own fax account instead of sharing.

After a fax account is configured, link it to a location so that all users in that location use it as their default fax account. You can also link a fax account to a specific provider if they want to use a specific fax account or number. If you do not link the location or provider to a fax account, users are prompted to choose an account when they send a fax.

#### Steps

- 1. From the Wolf EMR home page, click **Configuration** .
- 2. From the **Configuration** menu, choose **View** > **eFax Accounts**. The **eFax Accounts Maintenance** window opens.

**Tip:** If your clinic has many fax accounts listed, click **Filter** and, below the Fax Accounts heading, type your filter or search criteria. To view previously disabled accounts, select the **Include Disabled Accounts** check box. Disabled accounts appear in italics.

<b>1</b>	Fax Accou	nts Maintenance
Filter New Create Manage	Delete	
Fax Accounts	Add Fax Account	Save
Test Fax Account 2		
Test Fax Account 3	* Name:	1
	* Fax Number:	
	* Account ID:	
	* Account Password:	
	* Incoming Fax Folder:	
	* Account URL:	https://www.srfax.com/SRF_SecWebSvc.php
	* Email Address:	
	* Number of Retries:	3 🔻

3. To add an account, click **New** and, using the following table, enter your fax account information. All fields are required.

Field	Description
Name	A unique name for the fax account.
Fax Number	The fax number associated with the account.
Account ID	The ID of the account, as issued by the faxing provider.

Field	Description
Account Password	The password of the account, as issued by the faxing provider.
Incoming Fax Folder	Choose the Wolf folder where incoming faxes will be saved. You can add your own subfolder.
Account URL	
Email Address	The email address associated with the faxing account.
Number of Retries	Enter a value between 0 and 6 to specify how many times the faxing provider tries to re-send a failed fax.

4. To disable an account, select the account and click **Disable** 2.



**Note:** You cannot disable an account if it is still linked to a provider or a location. You can later enable a disabled account.

5. To permanently delete an account, select the account and click Delete 🔭



**Note:** You cannot delete an account it was already used to send or receive faxes (instead, disable it) or if it is linked to a provider or location.

- 6. To link a fax account to a location, perform the following actions:
  - a) From the Wolf EMR home page, click **Configuration** .
  - b) On the Clinic Address/Phone tab, next to Locations, click Edit. The Location Maintenance window opens.
  - c) Choose the default **Fax Account** for this location.
- 7. To link a fax account to a provider, perform the following actions:
  - a) From the Wolf EMR home page, click **Configuration** .
  - b) From the Configuration menu, choose View > Physicians/Service Providers > Office Service Providers.
  - c) Select the provider and in the Name/Address tab, select the Fax Account.